

Encore JR/SR High School

Regular Meeting: Encore Board of Directors

Published on March 11, 2022 at 2:23 PM PST

Date and Time

Monday March 14, 2022 at 6:30 PM PDT

Location

This meeting is being held virtually pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (e). The public can access this meeting via Zoom as follows:

Join Zoom Meeting

https://zoom.us/j/5871494303?pwd=Mit3elRMOVhzYjM4K1d2SStPeEZiQT09

Meeting ID: <u>587 149 4303</u> Passcode: 936591 One tap mobile

<u>+16699006833,,5871494303#,,,,,</u>0#,,936591# US (San Jose) <u>+13462487799,,5871494303#,,,,,</u>0#,,936591# US (Houston)

Dial by your location

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C)

Meeting ID: <u>587 149 4303</u>

Passcode: 936591

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aFccAHayh

Members of the public who wish to comment during the Board meeting may use the "raise hand" tool on the Zoom platform. Members of the public calling in will be given the opportunity to address the Board during the meeting. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time for public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board meeting.

Agenda

	Purpose	Presenter	Time
I. Opening Items			6:30 PM
A. Call the Meeting to Order		Rob Gabler, Board President	
B. Record Attendance		Rob Gabler, Board President	1 m
C. Public Comment		Joseph Thibodeaux	1 m

All public comment, both on agenda items and non-agenda items within the jurisdiction of the Board, should be provided during the agenda item titled, "invitation for public to address the Board." Members of the public who wish to comment during the Board meeting may use the "raise hand" tool on the Zoom platform. Members of the public calling in will be given the opportunity to address the Board during the meeting. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per agenda item and one three (3) minute period to address an item not on the agenda. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes per person per agenda item. The Board limits the total time for public comment to thirty minutes, and may extend this time at its sole discretion. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board meeting.

II. Compensation Study			6:32 PM
A. Review and Adoption of Comparable Compensation Data for Charter School Executives	Vote	Rob Gabler	5 m
III. Employment Agreement for Executive Director			6:37 PM
A. Review and Approval of Employment Agreement for Executive Director	Vote	Rob Gabler	5 m
B. Oral Report of Executive Compensation Paid to the Executive Director	Vote	Rob Gabler	2 m
IV. Closing Items			6:44 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Rob Gabler	2 m

A copy of the agenda will be posted at least 72 hours before such meeting. A copy of the written materials which will be submitted to the Board of Encore Junior and Senior High School for the Arts is available along with this agenda following the posting of the agenda by emailing Sabrina Bow at sbow@encorehighschool.com.

Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this public meeting shall be made 24 hours prior to the meeting by calling (760) 956-2632 or emailing Joseph Thibodeaux at jthibodeaux@encorehighschool.com. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and public documents can be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Cover Sheet

Review and Adoption of Comparable Compensation Data for Charter School Executives

Section: II. Compensation Study

Item: A. Review and Adoption of Comparable Compensation Data for

Charter School Executives **Purpose:** Vote

Submitted by: Related Material:

Compensation Survey Encore Education Corp CEO February 2022.pdf

Encore Education Corporation Governing Board Summary of Compensation and Benefits Survey Data for Chief Executive Officer

February 2022

Prior to any Board action to approve any decisions regarding executive compensation (including approval of base salary increases, incentive compensation, bonuses, etc.), the Board must first exercise due diligence (review of comparable compensation practices) to ensure compliance with IRS restrictions on excess compensation for nonprofit executives, including the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") of Encore Education Corporation. The Board's review and approval of the executive compensation must occur: initially upon hiring the executive; whenever the term of employment, if any, is renewed or extended; and whenever the officer's compensation is modified.

In reviewing the reasonableness of compensation for nonprofit executives, the IRS considers "compensation" broadly and will look at the value of salary, as well as non-fixed compensation (incentive compensation/bonuses), and benefits. If the IRS determines compensation is not reasonable, severe consequences may result.

The following is a summary of findings, subsequent to a review and comparison of a sampling of total compensation levels received by public school leaders in Southern California. Compensation figures are from the State Controller's Office for the 2019 and 2020 calendar years (the most recent available). Student enrollment figures are from the California Department of Education for the 2020-2021 school year. The CEO of Encore Education Corporation oversees one charter school in San Bernardino County with a total population of approximately 701 students. Based on these facts, this study compared salary packages of similarly situated public school leaders. The two charter schools and five traditional public schools surveyed in this summary have an average population of 1,028 students.

Of the schools sampled, the average total compensation package (base salary plus other compensation) for school leaders is approximately \$190,023. The average base salary is approximately \$153,965. The range for base salary is \$118,912 to \$193,854. Salaries can range based on many factors such as experience, tenure at the school, student populations, staff size, and location of the school. These salaries are based on the 2020 calendar year, so a reasonable increase of 3% to 5% can be included, making the average base salary between \$158,584 and \$161,663 for calendar year 2022.

Cedar Middle School (San Bernardino County)	1,162 Students	
Principal		
Total Compensation Package	\$179,441	
Base Salary	\$153,491	
Other Compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$25,950	
Norton Science and Language Academy (San Bernardino	793 Students	
County)		
Principal		
Total Compensation Package	\$145,751	
Base Salary	\$118,912	
Other compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$26,839	
Helendale Elementary (San Bernardino County)	486 Students	
Principal		
Total Compensation Package	\$175,021	
Base Salary	\$138,708	
Other compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$36,313	
Painted Hills Middle School (Riverside County)	819 Students	
Principal		
Total Compensation Package	\$173,741	
Base Salary	\$136,658	
Other compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$37,083	
Santa Rosa Academy (Riverside County)	1,556 Students	
Executive Director		
Total Compensation Package	\$245,460	
Base Salary	\$193,854	
Other compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$51,606	
Rubidoux High School (Riverside County)	1,546 Students	
Principal		
Total Compensation Package	\$199,152	
Base Salary	\$162,564	
Other Compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$36,588	
George Washington Charter School (Riverside County)	836 Students	
Principal		
Total Compensation Package	\$211,595	
Base Salary	\$173,566	
Other compensation (benefits and retirement)	\$38,029	

Cover Sheet

Review and Approval of Employment Agreement for Executive Director

Section: III. Employment Agreement for Executive Director Item: A. Review and Approval of Employment Agreement for

Executive Director

Purpose: Vote

Submitted by: Related Material:

Fixed Term Admin Agreement EEC and S. Bow 3.9.22 (4891-5699-3300.v1).pdf

FIXED TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT Between ENCORE EDUCATION CORPORATION & Dr. SABRINA BOW

This Employment Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the above-named employee ("Employee") and the Governing Board ("Board") of Encore Education Corporation ("EEC"), a California public charter school approved by the Hesperia Unified School District ("District"). The Board desires to hire employees who will assist the Board in achieving the goals and meeting the requirements of EEC's charter. The parties recognized that the provisions of the California Education Code do not govern EEC, except as expressly set forth in the Charter Schools Act of 1992 and its successors.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, EEC is a charter school, organized and operating pursuant to the provisions of the Charter document ("Charter") and applicable law; and

WHEREAS, EEC is authorized pursuant to the terms of the Charter to appoint and hire Employee to assist the Board and to carry out the duties and functions as outlined in the job description attached and incorporated to this Agreement as **Attachment A**; and

WHEREAS, EEC desires to retain the services of the Employee of EEC by way of this Agreement and the Employee is qualified to perform such duties; and

WHEREAS, the Employee and EEC desire to formalize the employment relationship by way of this Agreement;

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual terms and conditions contained herein, the parties hereto do agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. TERM AND WORK SCHEDULE.

Subject to Section 12, "Termination of Contract" herein, EEC hereby employs the Employee to serve as the Executive Director for a term of approximately twenty-eight (28) months, commencing on March 9, 2022, and ending June 30, 2024.

The Executive Director position is a full-time position exempt from overtime law. As a minimum performance requirement, the work schedule for the Employee shall be Monday through Friday, during regular business hours. The position is on-site, but the Employee may work remotely from home (in California) for a maximum of twelve (12) business days a month, provided the Employee's absence does not negatively impact school operations. If the Board determines that EEC is negatively impacted by not having the Employee on-site more days, the Board may reduce the frequency of the Employee's remote work without further revision to the Agreement.

As this position is exempt from overtime, additional duties of the Employee may need to be performed outside of the work schedule, as well as before and after the regular work year or

hours of the workday. The Employee will not render services in person or by electronic means, paid or otherwise, for any other person or entity during contracted work hours with EEC.

2. <u>Compensation</u>. The Employee shall receive a gross base salary of \$182,400 per year (\$15,200 per month) through June 30, 2022. Effective July 1, 2022, the Employee shall receive an increase in gross base salary to \$187,200 per year (\$15,600 per month) thereafter. The Employee's salary shall be prorated and paid twice monthly over twelve (12) months on EEC's regularly scheduled paydays. EEC shall make any required payroll withholdings and authorized deductions from the Employee's gross base salary. The Employee's compensation may be prorated depending on whether the Employee remains employed, or in active work status, for all workdays for the position.

Based upon the annual performance of the Employee as documented in the performance evaluation, as well as the financial stability of the School, the Employee may be eligible to receive additional salary increases or bonuses from the Board. As noted above, the Employee is exempt from overtime law and shall not be entitled to additional pay for performing duties outside of the scheduled work year/day.

The Employee may be subject to salary reductions, furloughs, or work reductions in the same manner as other employees of EEC. However, the Employee shall not have her salary reduced or be furloughed unless the Board determines there is a financial need for the reduction and the Board votes unanimously to approve it. This section shall not apply to payroll deductions for absences, leaves, garnishments, or other regular payroll adjustments.

3. **BENEFITS.**

- a. <u>Health/Retirement Benefits</u>. The Employee acknowledges that she has declined any contribution toward health benefits by EEC. The Employee may participate in EEC retirement plans and programs, including any 403 (b) retirement plan at EEC, consistent with plan eligibility requirements. If the Employee loses her current health benefits, the parties may renegotiate the "Compensation" and "Benefits" sections of the Agreement.
- b. **Paid Personal Leave.** The Employee is also entitled to Paid Personal Leave as established in the Employee Handbook. Paid Personal Leave may be used with prior scheduling approval by the Board.
- c. <u>Sick Leave</u>. The Employee shall be entitled to paid sick leave as provided for in the Employee Handbook.
- d. <u>Holidays</u>. The Employee shall take holiday days according to the calendar of holidays observed by the School annually.

Section 3, "Benefits" is subject to renegotiation by the parties at the end of each school year, beginning in 2023.

4. <u>DUTIES.</u> The Employee shall perform the duties of Employee as outlined below, directed by the Board, Board Policy or procedures, prescribed by the Charter, or specified in the attached job description which is incorporated by reference as **Attachment A** to this Agreement. This description and the job duties for the Employee may be altered from time to time by the Board.

- 5. WORK YEAR. The Executive Director position is a twelve (12) month/year-round position. In accordance with the term of this Agreement, the Employee shall be required to work a minimum of 219 days throughout each year, consistent with the attached school calendar which is incorporated by reference as **Attachment B** to this Agreement.
- 6. **EVALUATION.** The Board shall evaluate the performance of the Employee at least once annually. This evaluation shall be based on the job description and the performance objectives set out by the Board with the Employee. The Board will meet with the Employee to establish the goals for the year, the performance objectives for the Employee, and the performance evaluation criteria by or before the start of each school year. If applicable, the evaluation shall include recommendations as to areas of improvement in all instances where the Board deems such to be necessary or appropriate. A copy of the written evaluation shall be delivered to the Employee and he or she shall have the right to make an oral or written response to the evaluation. Within thirty (30) days of the delivery of the written evaluation to the Employee, the Board shall meet with the Employee to discuss the evaluation. Failure to evaluate the Employee shall not impair the Board's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 12.
- 7. **EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT.** EEC shall reimburse the Employee for all documented actual and necessary expenses personally incurred within the scope of employment in accordance with applicable EEC policy and authorization.
- 8. <u>FINGERPRINTING/TB CLEARANCE</u>. Fingerprint clearance for the Employee will be acquired through submitting the Employee's fingerprints to the California Department of Justice. The Employee will be required to assume the cost of all fees related to the fingerprinting process and will be required to submit evidence from a licensed physician that the Employee was found to be free from tuberculosis risk factors, or active tuberculosis if risk factors were identified. Both clearances must be in place prior to the first day of service.
- 9. CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT REPORTING. California Penal Code section 11166 requires any child care custodian who has knowledge of, or observes, a child in his or her professional capacity or within the scope of his or her employment whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse to report the known or suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency immediately, or as soon as practically possible, by telephone and to prepare and send a written report thereof within thirty-six (36) hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. By executing this Agreement, the Employee acknowledges she is a child care custodian and is certifying that she has knowledge of California Penal Code section 11166 and will comply with its provisions.
- 10. <u>Conflicts of Interest</u>. The Employee understands that, while employed at the School, she will have access to confidential and proprietary information. Employee therefore shall not maintain employment or contracts for employment, or engage in any consultant or independent contractor relationship, with any other agency or school that will in any way conflict with her employment with EEC. In addition, this Section shall be applied specifically to the Employee engaging, directly or indirectly, in the industry of EEC. This includes but is not limited to, communicating with related business owners, partners, members, officers, or agents; being employed by any related business; being self-employed in a related business; or soliciting any customer, client, affiliate, vendor, or any other relationship of EEC. This Section shall be in effect for fourteen (14) days following the Employee's termination.

11. **OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES.** Upon obtaining prior written approval of the Board, the Employee may undertake for consideration outside professional activities, including consulting, speaking, and writing. The outside activities shall not occur during regular work hours. EEC shall in no way be responsible for any expenses attendant to the performance of such outside activities.

12. <u>Termination of Contract.</u>

This Agreement may be terminated by any of the following:

a. <u>Termination For Cause</u>. The Employee may be terminated by the Board at any time for cause. In addition, Employee may be disciplined (e.g. reprimand, suspension without pay) for cause during the term of this Agreement. "Cause" shall include, but is not limited to, breach of this Agreement; misconduct or dishonest behavior; conviction of a crime involving dishonesty, breach of trust, or physical or emotional harm to any person; any ground enumerated in the Employee Handbook; or the Employee's failure to satisfactorily perform her duties as set forth in this Agreement, as defined by law, or as specified in the above-mentioned and incorporated by reference job description.

The Board shall not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph until a written statement of the grounds of termination has first been served upon the Employee. The Employee shall have the right to a representative of her choice at a conference with the Board. The conference with the Board shall be the Employee's exclusive right to any hearing otherwise required by law.

- b. <u>Early Termination Without Cause</u>. The Board may unilaterally and without cause or advance notice terminate this Agreement. In consideration of the Board's right to terminate this Agreement without cause, the Board shall pay to the Employee the remainder of her salary (based upon any remaining calendared workdays) for the term of this Agreement or for a period of one (1) month following the effective date of termination, whichever is less.
- c. <u>Death or Incapacitation of the Employee</u>. The death of the Employee shall terminate this Agreement and all rights entitled under this Agreement. In the event that the Employee becomes incapacitated to the extent that, in the judgment of the Board, the Employee may no longer perform the essential functions of her job with or without reasonable accommodation, as set forth in job specifications, the Board may terminate this Agreement.
- d. **Revocation/Nonrenewal**. In the event that the EEC charter with its granting agency is either revoked or nonrenewed, this Agreement shall terminate immediately upon the effective date of the revocation/nonrenewal of the charter, and without the need for the process outlined in Section b above.
- 13. <u>Non-Renewal/Expiration of Term.</u> The Board may elect not to offer future employment agreements to Employee at its sole discretion, without cause, and this Agreement will lapse by its own terms.

- 14. **REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS.** The following provisions are required to be included in this Agreement by the California Government Code:
 - a. <u>Limitations on Cash Settlement</u>. In no case upon termination of this Agreement shall the maximum cash settlement exceed an amount equal to the monthly salary of the Executive Director multiplied by 12.
 - b. Required Reimbursements. The Executive Director shall be required to reimburse EEC for any salary or fees she receives from EEC in relation to her placement on paid administrative leave pending criminal charges if she is convicted of a crime involving the abuse of her office/position. Regardless of the term of this Agreement, if the Agreement is terminated, the Executive Director must reimburse EEC for any cash settlement she receives in relation to her termination if she is convicted of a crime involving the abuse of her office/position.
- 15. **ENTIRE AGREEMENT.** This Agreement supersedes any and all other Agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other Agreement, statement or promise related to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding.
- 16. WAIVER. Either party to this Agreement may specifically and expressly waive, in writing, compliance by the other party thereto with any term, condition or requirements set forth in this Agreement. Either party to this Agreement may specifically and expressly waive, in writing, any breach of any term, condition or requirement of this Agreement by the other party hereto. However, in the event that either party makes or gives such a waiver, such action shall not constitute a further or continuing waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach, or requirement of compliance with, the same or any other provision or contractual requirement, unless a specific statement to the contrary is contained with such waiver. No waiver or consent shall be implied from the silence or from the failure of any party to act, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.
- 17. **JURISDICTION.** The parties hereby understand and agree that this Agreement, and the attachments hereto, have been negotiated and executed in the State of California and shall be governed by, and construed under, the laws of the State of California.
- 18. <u>AMENDMENTS</u>. No addition to, or modification of, any provision contained in this Agreement shall be effective unless fully set forth in writing *and* signed by the authorized representative of both of the parties hereto.
- 19. <u>INTERPRETATION AND OPPORTUNITY TO COUNSEL</u>. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been given an opportunity to independently review this Agreement with legal counsel. In the event of a controversy or dispute between the parties concerning the provisions herein, this document shall be interpreted according to the provisions herein and no presumption shall arise concerning the draftsman of such provision.
- 20. <u>SEVERABILITY</u>. If any term, provision, condition or covenant of the Agreement shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent provided by law.

- 21. **EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.** This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a duplicate original when all counterparts are executed, but all of which constitute a single instrument.
- 22. <u>SIGNATURES</u>. In witness therein, we affix our signatures to this Agreement with the full and complete understanding of the relationship between the parties hereto.

	The Governing Board of and on Behalf of EEC
DATED:	By:
	Dr. Sabrina Bow, Executive Director
DATED:	By:
	Rob Gabler, Board Chair

This Employment Agreement is subject to ratification and approval by the Governing Board of EEC.